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VISION STATEMENT

To be a customer oriented Company having wide and diversified customer base with a
team of professionals working together to add value to all the stakeholders and

contributing to society to help build a strong and progressive Pakistan.

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of AN Textile Mills Limited is, recognition of its project as the most modern
units, and to produce fine quality of product with the understanding of customer
behavior. Build the Company on sound financial footings, increase earnings for

handsome distribution of dividend to its shareholders.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 43" Annual General Meeting of the members of AN Textile
Mills Limited (“the Company™) will be held on Monday, October 28, 2024 at 11:30 A M.
at its registered office situated at 35 K.M. Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad to transact the
following business:

ORDIMNARY BUSINESS:

To confirm the minutes ot last Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on March 30, 2024,

(B

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the vear
ended June 30, 2024 together with the Chairperson’s review, Directors’ and Auditors” reports
thercon.

3. To appoimnt the auditors of the Company for the next financial vear and to hx their
remuneration. The retining auditors M/s Riaz Ahmad and Company, Chartered Accountants,

being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment.

4. To transact any other business that may be brought forward with the permission of the Chair,

By Urd{;cf -'}!‘ thd Board

Dated: Octaber 07, 2024 Muzammal Jymil
Faisalabad {(Company Sccretary)
NOTES:

1. CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS

The share transter books ot the Company shall remain close from October 21, 2024 to October
28, 2024 (both days inclusive). Transfers received at the Share Registrar Office M/s Corplink
(Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town. Lahore by the close of
business on October 18, 2024 will be considered 1n time.

2. PARTICIPATION IN ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
A member entitled to attend and vote at the general meeting 15 entitled to appoint another
member as proxy. The proxies in order to be effective must be received by the Company not
less than 48 hours before the meeting.
CDC account holders will tfurther have to follow the under mentioned guidelines:
A, FORATTENDING THE MEETING:
[n case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose
securities are in group account, and their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC

Regulations, shall authenticate his identity by sharing scan copy his original CNIC or original
passport at least 48 hours before the AGM,
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B. FOR APPOINTING PROXIES

In case of mdividuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose
securities are in group account, and their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC

Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the requirements notified by the Company,

The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers

shall be mentioned on the form.

Attested copies of CNIC or the passport, of the beneticial owners and the proxy shall be

furnished with the proxy form,

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attormey with specimen
signature shall be submitted along with proxy form,
Form of proxy is annexed at the end of annual report as well as available at Company’s website

1.e., www.antextile.com.pk
CHANGE OF ADDRESSES
Shareholders are requested to notify the change in their addresses 1t any, immediately.

COMPUTERISED NATIONAL [DENTITY CARD NUMBER / NATIONAL TAX
NUMBER

[n compliance with regulatory directives issued from time to time, members who have not vet
provided their Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) Numbers and/or National Tax Number
(NTN), as the case may be, are requested to kindly provide copies of their valid CNIC and/or NTN
certificates at the earliest.

UNCLAIMED SHARES / DIVIDEND

Sharcholders of the Company are hereby informed that as per the record, there are some
unclaimed/uncollected’ unpaid dividends and shares. Shareholders who could not collect their
dividends/shares are advised 1o contact our Shares Registrars o collectenguire about their
unclaimed dividend or shares, if any. In compliance with section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017,
after having completed the stipulated procedure, of three years or more from the date due and
pavable, shall be deposited to the credit of Federal Government in case of unclaimed dividend and
in case of share. shall be delivered to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
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ﬁl.

DEPOSIT OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO CDC ACCOUNT

As per section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every existing Company shall be required to replace
its physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), within a period not exceeding
four wears Irom the commencement of the Act. In this regard, SECP wvide its Letter No,
CSDYEDMisc./2016-639-640 dated March 26, 2021 has advised all the listed companies to pursue
their sharcholders who still hold shares in physical form, requiring them to convert their shares in
book-entry form. Holding shares in book-entry form has numerous benefits including sccure
custody of shares, instantaneous transfer of ownership and no risk of damaged. lost, forged or
duplicate certificates. Accordingly, shareholders having physical shareholding are requested to
convert their shares in book-entry form by opening CDC sub-account with any of the brokers or
Investor Account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into script-less form.

TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORT ELECTRONICALLY

SECP through its notification SRO 787(1)2014 dated September 8, 2014 has allowed the
circulation of audited financial statements along with the notice of Annual General Meeting
clectronically to the sharcholders of the Company through email. Theretore, sharcholders who
wish 1o receive the soft copy of Annual Report are requested to send theirr e-mail addresses,
The consent form for electronic transmission can be downloaded from the Company’s website.
The Company shall however, continue to provide hard copy of the audited financial statements

to 1ts shareholders, on request free of cost. within seven days of receipt of such request.

AVAILABILITY OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON COMPANY’S
WEBSITE

In compliance with SECP notification No. 634(1)/2014 dated July 10, 2014, the audited financial
statements and reports of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 are being placed on the
Company’s website: www.antextile.com.pk for information and review of the members.

VIDEO LINK FACILITY

The members may demand the Company to provide the facility of video-link for participating in
the AGM. To attend the meeting through video link, members and their proxies are requested to
register themselves by providing the tollowing information along with valid copy of Computerized
National Identity Card (both sides)/passport, attested copy of board resolution / power of attorney
(in case of corporate sharcholders) through email at es@@antexule.com.pk.

Name of Member/Proxy CNIC No. | Folio No./CDC Cell Nou ' Email
holder Account No, Whats App No Address

The video link and login credentials will be shared with the sharcholders whose e-mails, conlaining
all the requested particulars. are received at the given e-mail address.
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CHATRPERSON'S REVIEW
For the year ended June 30, 2024

The Board of Directors of AN Textile Mills Limited (“the Company™) is performing its dutics in
accordance with law and in the best interest of the Company and its sharcholders as required
under the Code of Corporate Governance, an annual evaluation of the Board of Directors of the
Company is carried out. The purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that the Board's overall
performance and eftectiveness is measured and benchmarked against expectations in the context
of objectives set for the Company.

For the financial year ended June 30, 2024, the Board’s overall performance and effectiveness
has been assessed as satistactory. This 1s based on an evaluation of integral components,
including vision, mission and values; engagement in strategic planning; formulation of policics;
monitoring the organization’s business activities; monitor financial resource management;
effective fiscal oversight; equitable treatment of all employees and efficiency in carrying out the
Board’s business.

AN Textile Mills Limited complies with all the requirements set out in the Law with respect to
the composition, procedures and meetings of the Board of Directors and its committees.
Necessary Board agenda and related supporting documents were duly made available to the
board in sufficient time prior to the board and its committees’ meetings, The Board has exercised
all its powers in accordance with relevant laws and regulation and the non-cxccutive and
independent directors are equally involved in important decisions of the Board.

Nag!ﬂ% st

Mrs. Nazma Amer
Chairperson
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DIRECTORS” REPORT TO THE SHARE HOLDERS

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their 43™ Annual Report along with audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2024 along with
Auditors™ Report thereon and other required information prescribed under the Code of Corporate
Governance. The comparative financial results of the Company are reproduced hercunder:

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 3,460,089 1.676.679
COST OF SALES (3,391,953) (1.760.996)
GROSS PROFIT / (LOSS) 68,136 (84.317)
DISTRIBUTION COST (5,507) (1.289)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (67.397) (53.889)
OTHER EXPENSES (21,415) (278)
OTHER INCOME 5,070 3,913
FINANCE COST (50,178) (95,954)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION AND LEVY (71,291) (231.764)
[FVY (43,251) (20.95%)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (114,542 {252.722)
TAXATION 4,166 56.987
LOSS AFTER TAXATION (110,376) {195.735)

LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC
AND DILUTED (RUPFES) N (11.43) (20.26)

REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

-

In the fiscal year under review, revenue grew by 106.37% from Rupees 1,676.679 million 1o Rupees 3,460,089
million while cost of sales increased by 92.62% from Rupees 1,760,996 million to Rupees 3,391.953 million. The
Company carned gross profit of Rupees 68,136 million as compared to previous year’s gross loss of Rupees 84.317
million. Moreover, the Company
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taced loss after taxation of Rupees 110.376 million as compared to loss after taxation of Rupees
195,735 million in corresponding year.

The Current fiscal year has not been very good for textile industry as a whole. This sluggish
trend is mainly due to the high cost of performing business as compared to our neighboring
countries, high energy costs, erratic trends in the prices of raw material, disproportionate selling
prices of varn, adverse economic conditions, political instability and constant increase in
MINIMUM wages.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Pakistan cconomy faced significant uncertainty, characterized by high inflation and a decline in
large-scale manufacturing. The cost of conducting business remains prohibitively high, and the
textile industry 15 en-countering escalating difficulties amidst regional competition, Global
demands remains subdued, resulting in depressed demand of end products. The industry will
continue to grapple with these challenges until 1ssues pertaining to energy and borrowing cost are
addressed. a task made daunting by commitments to IMF.

The cotton crop in Pakistan continues to decline year by vear due to poor seed germination and
inclement weather. The tailure of local cotton crop in this season will be a huge challenge tor the
industry, During the current year the crop forecast 15 approximately 8.5 million bales, and we
have to import remaining bales to meet our requirements. The government should focus on
improvements in sced development and research on this sector. In current season, cotton prices
are also extremely volatile, but the management of your Company is closely monitoring the
cotton outlook to procure best quality cotton.

The management remains cognizant of these challenges as it continues its efforts to regain its
profitability by increasing its market efforts to increase in share of the market. We also remain
focused on the challenge of reducing our operating costs and using our efficiencies to maximize
our returns. Moreover, the Company will operate on its optimum capacity as it has support from
interest free loans obtained from the directors of the Company and facility of borrowings from
the banks to meet the liquidity requirements.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The loss per share for the year ended June 30, 2024 15 Rupees 11.43 as compared to loss per
share of Rupees 20.26 for the last year ended on June 30, 2023.

DIVIDEND

Since the company has incurred loss. therefore. the directors have not rccommended any
dividend tor the year,
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OUTSTANDING STATUTORY PAYMENTS
All outstanding payments arc nominal and of routine nature.
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2024 15 annexed. No trade in the shares of the company
was carried out during the vear by its Directors, CEQ, CFO and Company Secretary and their
spouses and minor children except for the sales / purchase of shares as mentioned on page

no. 73
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions with related parties are carried out at arm’s Iength, The prices are determined n
accordance with comparable un-controlled price method. The Company has complied with best
practices on transfer pricing as contained in listing regulations of the Stock Exchanges of
Pakistan.

AUDITORS

The auditors M/s Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered Accountants retired and being cligible for
re-appointment, the Board of Directors has been suggested by the Audit Committee, the re-
appointment of M/s Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered Accountants, as auditors of your
company for the next financial yeuar.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk assessment 1s an on-going process that highlights numerous uncertainties that poses
potential threats which may hinder the accomplishment of objectives of the Company. It these
risks are not being addressed in timely manner, may culminate in loss, Such risks and
uncertaintics can arise both from external as well as internal factors within the Company.
Various risks are being faced by the company and summarized as follow along with mitigating
strategics.

STRATEGIC RISKS

'he strategic risks such as critical availability of gas, electricity and alternate fuels for power
oeneration, and changes in domestic competitive scenario are being continuously monitored. The
Company’s expansion plans and growth targets are revisited with changing market situation.
Changes in macro-economic indicators, inconsistent / arbitrary changes in Government Policies
and significant increase in natural gas, electricity and other fuel prices making cost of production
substantially higher arc also being closely monitored & duly considered. Appropriate mitigation
strategics arc formulated to reduce the impact of these risks to an acceptable level.

10
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OPERATIONAL RISKS

Business continuity and disaster recovery plans are in place 1o ensure that continuity in
production and sales operations; in case of major failures and outages Lo ensure continuity,
sustainability and avoid any disruption to the business. Raw material sourcing, adequate
segregation of duties, self- sufficiency in power generation at our plants, cfficient supply chain
and logistic operations have enabled us to mitigate operational risk to an acceptable level.

FINANCIAL RISKS

One of the major financial risks 1s the fluctuation of the exchange rate and adverse movements
can dircctly affect our raw material costs and also lcad to a risc in manufacturing costs. The
Company is awarc of this situation and monitors such movements carcfully to cnsure minimum
shocks. Strict financial discipline, cash tflow management and investment of available funds in
best possible avenues aid us in minimizing Financial Risks.

COMPLIANCE RISKS

Dug to effective compliance with laws and regulations and transparent financial reporting
framework, compliance risk posed to the Company remains low. The Board promotes risk
management and compliance culture in the Company. Litigation risks involving significant cases
against the Company are handled through reputable Law firms with specialized expertise
wherever required.

HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIORNMENT

Company believes in and are fully committed to improve Health, Safety and Environment
standards to achieve sustainable performance. Your Company was quick to implement the
Standards Operating Procedures (SOPs) to combat any climate change.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

I'he Company admits its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) towards the society and believes
in supporting the community.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board recognizes that well defined corporate governance processes are vital to enhancing
accountability. We are committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance to
maintain stakcholder value. The Board has been diligent and has contributed effectively in
cutding the Company 1n all its strategic affairs. The Company keep close co-ordination with the
Sccurities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the Pakistan Stock Exchange and complics
with the Code ot Corporate Governance in the letter and spint. The statement of complhiance with
best practices of Code of Corporate Governance 1s annexed,

11
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CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK:

In compliance to listing regulations of stock exchanges and as required under the Companies
Act, 2017, your Directors are pleased to state as under:

l.

A

b.

The financial statements prepared by the Management of vour Company present fairly its
state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

Proper books of accounts of the Company have been mamtained.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of these
financial statements and accounting estimates, which are based on reasonable and prudent
Judgment.

International Financial Reporting Standards and International Accounting Standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial statements. The system
of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

The system of internal control 1s sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

There is no doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as
detailed in the listing regulations.

Key operating financial data of last six years in summarized form is annexed.

The Company operates un-funded gratuity scheme for its employees as reflected in these
financial statcments.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Dunng the financial year under review, fresh Election of Directors was held on March 30, 2024

and the followings Directors were elected for the next term of three years.,

Mrs. Nazma Amer Chairperson

Mr. Aizad Amer Chief Executive Officer
Khawaja Amer Khurshid Director

Mr. Anns Amer Director

Mus. Yusra Amer Director

Syed Khalid Ali Director

Mr. Umar Muneer Director

Due to the re-constitution of the Board the formation of Audit Committee and HR and
Remuneration committee 1s as under:

12
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COMPOSITION OF BOARD AND ITS COMMITTIES
The total number of Dircctors arc seven as per the following:

Male: Five
Female: Two

The composition of the Board 1s as follows:
. [ndependent Directors

Sved Khahd Al
Mr. Umar Muncer

1. Non-executive Directors
Khawaja Amecr Khurshid
11i. Exccutive Directors

Mr. Aizad Amer
Mr., Anns Amer

1v. Female / Non-exccutive Dircctors

Mrs. Nazma Amer
Mrs. Yusra Amer

The Board has formed committeces comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee

Mr. Umar Munecer Chairman
Mrs. Yusra Amer Member
Syed Khalid Ali Member

HR and Remunceration Committee

Syed Khalid Ali Chairman
Mr. Umar Munecer Member
Mr. Anns Amer Member

Nomination Committee

Mr. Umar Muncer Chairman
Mrs., Yusra Amer Member
Sved Khahd Ahi Member

13
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Risk Management Committee

Mr. Anns Amer Chairman
Mr. Umar Muncer Mcember
Syed Khalid Al Member

NO. OF BOARD AND OTHER COMMITTEES” MEETINGS HELD:

Sr. | Name Board Of Audit HR & Nomination Risk
ot Directors Committee Remuneration Committee | Management
Meeting Meeting Committee Committee
Meeting
I | Mrs. Nazma 4/4 -
Amer
2 | Mr. Aizad 4/4 -
Amer
3 | Khawaja Amer 4/4 - -
Khurshid
4 | Mr. Anns 4/4 - 1/1 . 1/1
Amer
5 | Mrs. Yusra 4/4 4/4 - 1/1
Amer
6 | Mr. Abdul 373 3/3 1/1 1/1 1/1
Rauf
7 | Sved Khalid 4/4 4/4 1/1 1/1 1/1
Al |
% Mr, Limar 1/1 171
Muneer

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Board places on record its appreciation for the cooperation. commitment and hard work extended tc
the Company by the customers, supphers, bankers and all the employees of the Company.,

On behalt of the Board

}"f\|Sx'\| .x'\H;‘\U.
Dated: September 26, 2024 Chief Executive Officer

Ao
rf A/'fv /
(Khawaﬁ%ﬂ\nwr Khurshid)

4 Director

14
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)

Regulations, 2019

Name of Company: AN Textile Mills Limited

Ycar Ending:

30 June 2024

The Company has compiled with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.

The total number of Directors are seven as per the following:

d.

b.

Male: Five
Female: Two

2. The compaosition of the Board 15 as follows:

i

iii.

v,

Independent Directors

Sved Khalid Ali
Mr. Umar Muncer

Non-executive Director
Khawaja Amer Khurshid
Executive Directors

Mr. Aizad Amer
Mr. Anns Amer

Female / Non-executive Directors

Mrs, Wazma Amer
Mrs. Yusra Amer

* The fraction of independent directors is not rounded up as one because the fraction of 0.33 was
less than 0.50.

The Directors have conlirmed that none of them 1s serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company;

The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and
procedures;

I'he Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;
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1. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board! shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and
these Regulations;

The mectings of the Board were presided over by the Chairperson and. in her absence. by a
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of
Act and the Regulations with respect to trequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting
ol the Board:

#, The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

8. Three directors, Mr, Aizad Amer, Mr. Anns Amer, and Syed Khalid Ali has already acquired the
certification under Directors” Training Program (DTP) whercas another director, Khawaja Amer
Khurshid meets the exemption ceniteria of mimmmum of 14 years of education and 15 vears of
experience on the Boards of listed companies, hence exempt from DTP.

111, The Board has approved appomntment of Chief Financial Officer. Company Sceretary and Head
of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and

complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

[1. Chief Financial Officer and Chiet Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements
betore approval of the Board,

2. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a)  Audit Committee

Mr. Umar Munecer (Chairman)
Mrs. Yusra Amer (Member)
Sved Khalid Al (Member)

b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Sved Khalid Ali (Chairman)
Mr. Umar Muneer (Member)
Mr. Anns Amer {(Member)

¢) Nominaton Committee

Mr. Umar Muneer (Chairman)
Mrs. Yusra Amer (Member)
Syed Khalid Al (Member)

d) Risk Management Committee

Mr. Anns Amer (Chairman)
Mr. Umar Muneer {Member)
Syed Khahd Al (Member)
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1 3. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised

to the committee for compliance;

4. The frequency of meetings of the committees were as follows-

Committee | Frequency
Audit committee | Quarterly
HR and remuneration committee Yearly
Nomination committee Yearly
Risk Management committee Yearly

L5,

LG,

I'he Board has set up an effective mnternal audit function by appointing Head of Internal Audit
who is considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the
policies and procedures of the Company:

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of
cthics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and
non-dependent children) ot the Chiet Executive Ofticer, Chiet Financial Ofticer, Head of Internal
Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Company:

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed o provide
other services except in accordance with the Act. these Regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard;

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with; and

Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3. 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33
and 36 are below:

[Sr. No.!| Reguirement Explanation for Non-compliance | Regq. No.
1 : o 19(1)(ii)

It is encouraged that by 30 June,
2022 all the directors an the board | The Board will arrange DTP for its
to acquire the prescribed | remaining three directors in the
certification under any Director | next financial year.
Training Program (DTP) offered by
_ | Institutions. - |
2 Training of Head of Department: 19(3)(i1)

Companies are encouraged to | The Company will organize the

arrange training for at least one | training of its one head of

head of department every vyear | department each year from next

under DTP from July 2022. financial year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Nag)dq Attt

NAZMA AMER ATZAD AMER
Chairperson Chief Executive Ofticer
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KEY OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATA
FOR LAST SIX YEARS

PARTICULARS

FINANCIAL POSITION

Paid up capital
share premium 17,
Freed assets at cost/ revalued amount
Aecumulared 1']{:‘[11‘_‘1 laton HE3 04
Current assets 679,745
052239

Current liahilines

INCOMLE

Revenue 3,460,089

Orther income 3,070
Pre tax (loss) [ proti 114542

Taxaton

STATISTICS AND RATIOS

Pre tax {loss) o sales U
Pre tax (loss) wo capual % 11
Current ratn
Paid up value per share (Rs.) 10
T.oss) / Tlarnings atter tax per share (Rs) (1
Cash diwvidend 90

Break up value ner share (s B4T5

96,600
17,250)
2003 101
"20.745

83,125

1 676,670

(1382)
23992
IR
10

2026}

9568
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2022 2021

96,600 06,600 6,600 6,600

17,250 17,230 17,250 17,250

1830197 1738157 1554801 481,547

TEOO85 731980 (692,754 653,241

871,610 929,132 HRE U85

690,441

843447 956,477 840,786 773391

ZAGSTS 2006653 1315177 LE8S310

i

11,652 19,5389 22501 18,330

115,905 239,024 [T2,4435) 01,527

w472 119529 7,584 (42,507

11.4 (5.51) 3,26
G3.6Y
1103 10059
10 10
1.97
A0 400
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of AN Textile Mills Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance Contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of
Directors of AN Textile Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2024 in
accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of
the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects
the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if
it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal contro! systems sufficient to plan the audit
and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the
Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance
procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their
review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended 30 June 2024.

RIAZ AHMAD &f.‘EOMP INY
Cha r}eréﬁ@unﬁmtjs

Faisalabad g
Date: Eept\g-_- ber 26, 2024.
UDIN: CR202410158jc5TVFX0OK
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of AN Textile Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of AN Textile Mills Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the
audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair
view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2024 and of the loss, other
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the key audit matters:

' Sr. | Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in
' No. | our audit
‘1. | Inventory existence and
valuation .
QOur procedures over existence and
Inventories as at 30 June 2024 | valuation of inventories included, but were
amounting to Rupees 265.014 | not limited to:

million, break up of which is as
follows:

- Stores, spare parts and lcose
tools of Rupees 67.449 million

- Stock in trade of Rupees 197.565
million

Inventories are measured at the
lower of cost and net realizable
value.

We identified existence and valuation
of inventories as a key audit matter |
due to its size, representing 13.80%
of the total assets of the Company as
at 30 June 2024, and the judgment
involved in valuation.

For further information
inventories, refer to the following:

an

- Material accounting policy
information, Inventories (Note 2.7
to the financial statements).

- Stores, spare parts and loose
tools (Note 17) and Stock in trade
(Note 18) to the financial
statements.

To test the quantity of inventories at
all locations, we assessed the
corresponding inventory observaticn
instructions and participated in
inventary counts on site. Based on
samples, we performed test counts
and compared the quantities counted
by us with the results of the counts
of the management.

For a sample of inventory items, re-
performed the weighted average
cost calculation and compared the
weighted average cost appearing on
valuation sheets.

On a sample basis, we tested the net
realizable value of inventory items to
recent selling prices and re-
performed the calculation of the
inventory write down, if any.

In the context of our testing of the
calculation, we analyzed individual
cost components and traced them
back to the corresponding underlying
documents.

We alsc made inquiries from
management, including those
outside of the finance function, and
considered the results of our testing
above to determine whether any
specific write downs were required.

We also assessed the adequacy of]
the disclosures made in respect of
the accounting policies and related
notes to the financial statements.
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 Sr.

2.

No. |

Key audit matters

Revenue recognition

The Company recognized net
revenue of Rupees 3,460.089 million
for the year ended 30 June 2024,

We identified recogniticn of revenue
as a key audit matter because
revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the
Company and gives rise to an
inherent risk that revenue could be
subject to misstatement to meet
expectations or targets.

For further information, refer to the
following:

- Material accounting policy,
Revenue from contracts with
customers (Note 2.18 to the
financial statements).

- Revenue from contracts with
customers (Note 25 to the
financial statements).

How the matters were addressed in
our audit

Qur procedures included, but were not
limited to:

o We obtained an understanding of the
process relating to recognition of
revenue and testing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls
over recording of revenue.

¢« We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded during the year
with sales orders, sales invoices,
delivery documents and other relevant
underlying documents,

e We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded around the year-
end with the sales orders, sales
invoices, delivery documents and other
relevant underlying documentation to
assess if the related revenue was
recorded in the appropriate accounting
period.

e We assessed whether the accounting
policies for revenue recognition complies
with the requirements of IFRS 15
‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’.

* We also considered the appropriateness
of disclosures in the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
cantrol as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of proft or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
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tagether with the notes theraon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

d) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

e) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII
of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Mubashar Mehmood.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartergk&gco} ntan

= 7
Faisalabad ,\\

Date: September 26, 2024,
UDIN: AR202410158LzP95BKj3
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMER

COST OF SALES
GROSS PROFIT / (LOSS)

DISTRIBUTION COST

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER INCOME
FINANCE COST

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION AND LEVY

LEVY

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION
TAXATION

LOSS AFTER TAXATION

LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC
AND DILUTED (RUPEES)

NOTE 2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

25 3,460,089 1,676,679
26 (3,391,953) (1,760,996)
68,136 (84,317)
27 (5,507) (1,289)
28 (67,397) (53,889)
29 (21,415) (228)

30 5,070 3,913
31 (50,178) (95,954)
(71,291) (231,764)
21 (43,251) (20,958)
(114,542) (252,722)

32 4,166 56,987
(110,376) (195,735)
33 (11.43) (20.26)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

AlIZAD AMER
Chief Executive Officer

e

A AMER KHURSHID
Director

£y

Muha

i

ad Shqib Ehsan

Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTE 2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
LOSS AFTER TAXATION (110,376) (195,735)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurement gain / (loss} arising on staff retirement gratuity 9.4 6,642 (280)
Related deferred income tax lability (1,926) 81
4,716 (199)
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - 233,938
Related deferred income tax liability - (48,181}
- 185,757
4,716 185,558
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year - net of deferred income tax 4,716 185,558
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (105,660) (10,177)
The annexed notes farm an integral part of these financial statements.
/ -
AIZAD AMER KHAWZA JA AMER KHURSHID Muhamimad Saqib Ehsan
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTE 2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 34 215,396 156,394
Finance cost paid (56,078) (84,733)
Mark-up paid against lease liability 31 (314) (299)
Income tax and levy paid (29,463) (36,327)
Staff retirement gratuity paid 9.1 (14,644) (17,284)
Net (increase) / decrease in long term deposits and prepayments (23) 73
Increase in long term loans (200) -
Net cash generated from operating activities 114,674 17,824
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment 13 (25,361) (25,243)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 459 6,654
Net cash used in investing activities (24,902) (18,589)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Short term borrowings - net (90,980) 4,789
Repayment of lease liability (1,583) (240)
Net cash (used in) / from financing activities (92,563) 4,549
NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (2,791) 3,784
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 29,659 25,875
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR 24 26,868 29,659

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

V.

AlZAD AMER A AMER KHURSHID Muhamimad Saqib Ehsan
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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1.1

i.2

2.1

a)

b)

)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

AN Textile Mills Limited (the Company) is & public limited company incorporated in Pakistan under the

Companies Act, 1913 (Now Companies Act, 2017) on 04 February 1982 and listed on Pakisten Stock Exchenge
Limited an 08 March 1989, Its registered office and mills prem ses are situated at 35-Kilometers Sheikhupura
Road, Faisalabad. The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing, sale and trading of yarn and cloth. A
aison office is situated at 404-405, 4th Floor, Business Centre, Mumtaz Hassan Read, Karach

During the current finandial year, the Company used its production capacity better due to continuous availability
of raw materials. With better sale prices of yarn, the Company has achieved gross orofit. Moreover the Company
nas reduced its finance cost. In continuity of these factors, the Company is optimistic to improve its results in
future to optimum level.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policy information applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
nelow. Further, accounting polices related to material dass of accounts do net necessarily mean that these are
material. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, except for the change in
accounting policy of taxation and levy made in accordance with "Application Guidance on Accounting for
Minimum Taxes" issuec by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan through circular 7/2024. The
change has been explaired in Note 2.11 to these financial statements.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These financial statements nhave been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
appliceble in Pakistan, The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise af:

- Internationzl Financal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Stancards Board
(TASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017, and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the [FRSs, the provisions
of and directives issued under the Companies Adt, 2017 have been followed.

Accounting convention

These fingncial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as otherwise stated
n the respective accounting policies.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting and reporting standards
requires the use of certain critical accounting estmates. It also requires the manegement o exercise ils
judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually
eveluated and are based o historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the drcumstances. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are
significant to the Company's financial statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting
oolicies are as follows:

Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

The estimates for revalued amounts of different classes of property, plant and eguipment, are based on
valuation performed by external professional valuer and recommendation of technical teams of the Company.
The said recommendations also include estimates with respect to residual values and depreciable lives. Further,
the Company reviews the value of the assets for possinle impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respeclive items of property, olant and
equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.
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d)

Inventories

Inventory write-down is made based on the current market conditions, historical experience anc selling goods of
similar nature, 1t could change significartly as a result of changes in market conditions. A review is made on
each reporting cate on inventories for excess inventaries, obsolescence and declines in net reglizeble value and
an allowance is recorded against the inventory balances for any such declines.

Income tax and levy

In making the estimates for income tax and levy currently payable by the Company, the management takes into
accourt the current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past
Instances where the Company's view differs fram the view taken by the income tax department at the
assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordarce
with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liakilities.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit lusses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. It is based
on the [ifetime expected credit loss, based on the Company's experience of actual credit loss in past years.

Provisions

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations, public
expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take oplace many years in the future, the carrying
amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such chenges. Any
adjustments ta the amount of previously recognized provision is recognized in the statement of profit or loss
unless the provision was originally recognzed as part of cost of an asset.

Contingencies
The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Company. Based on the
judgment anc the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financiel outcome, appropriate disclosure or

provision is made. The actual outcome of these liigations anc claims can have an effect on the carrying amounts
of the liabilities recognized at the reporting date.

Revenue from contracts with customers invalving sale of goods
When recognizing revenue in relation to the sale of goods to customers, the key performance obligation of the

Company is considered to be the point of delivery of the goocs to the customer, as this is deemed to be the time
that the customer obtains control of the promised goods and therefore the benefits of unimpeded access.

Staff retirement gratuity

The actuarial velustion of staff retirement gratuity requires the use of certain assumptions releted to future
periods, including increase in future salary and the rate used to discount future cash flows to present vaiue.

Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year and
are relevant ta the Company

Followinrg amendments to published epproved accourting standards are mandatory for the Company’s
accounting periads beginning on or after 01 July 2023:

* Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements” and IFRS Practice Statement 2 "Making Materiality
Judgement” - Disclosure of Accounting Policies;

* Amendments to IAS 12 'Tncome Taxes’ - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction;

= Amendments to [AS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' - Change in definition
of *Accounting Estmate’; and

« Amendments to [AS 12 'Income Taxes' - International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules,

The above-mentioned amendments to aporoved accounting standards did not have any impact on the amounts
recegnized in prior period end are not expected to significantly affedt the currert or future periocs.
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e) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year but
not relevant to the Company

There are amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after
01 July 2023 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company's
financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

f) Standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective but relevant to the Company

Following amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the Company's
accounting periods beginning on o after 01 July 2024 or later periods:

Classification of lizbilites as current or non-current (Amendments to [AS 1 ‘Presertation of Financial
Statements’) effective for the annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2024. These amendments in the
standards have been added to further darify when a liability is classified as current. The standard also amends
the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of the entity’s right at the end
of the reporting period to defer the setfement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with [AS 8 "Accounting Pelicies, Changes
in Accounting Estmates and Errors’.

On 31 October 2022, the TASB issued 'Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1) to clerify
how conditions with which ar entity must comply within twelve months after the reporting period affect the
classification of a liability. The amendments are effective for reporting periods beginning on ar after 01 January
2024,

0On 22 September 2022, the 1ASB issued 'Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16) with
amendments that clarify how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy
the requirements in IFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 01 Jenuary 2024.

On 25 May 2023, the TASB issued 'Suppliers Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7) to add
disclosure requirements, and 'signpasts’ within existing disclosure requirements, that ask entities to provide
qualitative and guantitetive information about supplier finance arrangement. The amendments are effective for
reporting period beginning on or after 01 January 2024.

Classification and Measurements of Finandal Instruments (Amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Firancial Instruments:
Disclosures’ and IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’) effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January
2026. These amendments address matters identified during the past - implementation review of the classification
and measurement requirements of IFRS 9.

Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to 1AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’). The
amendments contain guidance to specify when a currency is exchangezble and how to determine the exchange
rate when it is not. The amendments are effective for annual reporting pericds beginning on or after 01 January
2025.

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements’ {effective for annual periods beginning on or after
01 January 2027) with a focus an updates to the statement of profit or loss. The objedtive of TFRS 18 is ta set
out requirements for the presentation and disclosure of information in general purpose financial statements to
help ensure they provide relevant information that faithfully represents an entity’s assets, liabiliies, equity,
income and expenses. The key new concepts introduced in IFRS 18 relate to: the structure of the statement of
profit or loss; required disclosures in the financial statements for certain profit or loss performance measures
that are reported outside an entity's finandial statements (thet is, manegement-defined performance measures);
and ennanced principles on aggregation anc disaggregation which apply ta the primary financial statements and
notes in general. IFRS 18 will replace [AS 1; many of the other existing principles in IAS | are retained, with
limitec changes. IFRS 18 will not impact the recognition or measurement of items in the financiel statements,
but it might change what an entity reports as its ‘operating profit or loss”.

The above amendments and improvements are likely to have no significant impact on the financial statements.

g) Standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective and not considered relevant to the Company

There are other standards and amendments to published approved standards that are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 July 2024 aut are considered not ta be relevant or do not have any sigrificant
impact on the Company’s financial statements and are therefore not deta led in these financial statements.

43




AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED| N ANNUAL REPORT 2024

2.2

23

Praperty, plant, equipment and depreciation

All operating fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss,
except those subject to revaluation which are stated at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and any
identified impa rment loss. Freshold land is stated at revalued amount less any identified impairment loss. Cost
of operating fixed assets consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to the construction / erecticn
period of qualifying assets and other directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of property, plant and eguipment are recognized, net of
deferred income tax, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation surplus in shereholders'
equity. To the extent that increase reverses & decrease previously recognized in the statement of profit or loss,
the increase is first recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the
same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus
attributable to the assef; all olher decreases are charged to the stalement of profit or loss. Each year, the
difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the statement of
profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of deferred income tax, is reclassified from
surplus on revaluztion of property, plant and equipment to accumulated loss.

Subseguent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probeble that future economic benefite associated with the item will flow to the Compary and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the statement
of profit or loss during the period in which these are incurred.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and eguipment is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the
reducing balance method so as to write off the cost / depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated
useful lives at the rates given in Note 13, The Company charges the deprecietion on edditions from the month
when the asset is available for use and on deletions up to the month preceding the month when the asset is de
recognized. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed by the management, at each financial yeer-end and
adjusted if mpact on depreciation is significant.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and eguipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expedted from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recogniticn of the asset is includec in the
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is de recognized while the refated residual revaluation surplus on
property, plant and equipment after taking into account incremental depreciation is trensferred directly to
accumulated loss.

Leases
Right-of-use assets

A right-of-use asset is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measurec at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability, adjusted for, as applicable, any lease payments made at ¢r before the
commencement date net of any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred.

Right-of-use assets zre depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of the lease or the
estimated useful life of the asset, whichever is shorter. Where the Company expects to obtain ownership of the
leased asset at the end of the lease term, the depreciation is charged over its estimatec useful [ife. Right-of use
assets are subject o impairment or adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities.

The Company has elected not to recognize a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease lizbility for short-term
leases with terms of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. Lease payments of these assets are
recognized as expense on straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Lease liabilities

A lease liebility is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognizec at
the present value of the lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental barrowing rate
Lease payments comprise of fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or g rate, amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, exercise price of a
purchase option when the exercise of the option is reasonably certain to occur, and any anticipated termination
penalties. The veriable lease payments that do not depend on an index or & rate are expensec in the perioc in
which these are incurred.

Lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts are re
measured if there is a change in the following: future lease payments arising from a change in an index or a rate
used; residual guarantee; lease term; certainty of a purchase option and termination penalties. When a lease
llability is re-measured, an adjustment is made to the correspending right-of-use asset, or to statement of profit
or loss If the carrying amount of the right of use asset is fully written down.

2.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or whenever events or
changes in circumstences indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognizec for the amount for which asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Nen-finandial
assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date
Reversals of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if impairment losses had not been
recognized. An impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

2.5 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as share capital and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax.

2.6 Borrowing cost
Berrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of

borrowing costs thal are directly attributeble Lo the acguisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset.
Such borrowing costs are cepitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

2.7 Inventories

Inventories, except for stock in transit and waste stock, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
is determined as follows:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Uszble stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued principally at moving average cost, while items considered
obsolete are carried at nil value. In transit stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at invoice amount plus
other charges incidental thereon

Stock in trade

Cost of raw materials, work-in-process and firished goods is determined as follows:
(I} Forraw meaterials: Weighted average cost.

{ii) For work-in-process and finished goods: Average manufacturing cost including a portion
of production overheads

Meterials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. Waste stock is
valued at net realizable value.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make a sale. Provision for cbsolete and slow moving items is made
based on management's estimate.
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2.8

2.9

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, balance with banks in current anc saving accounts and other
short term highly liquid instruments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in values.

Staff retirement benefit

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees, who have completed the
minimum quelifying period of service as defined under the scheme. The liabilities relating to defined benefit plan
are determined through actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The methad involves making
assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases and mortality rates. The latest actuarial valuation was
conducted at the reporting date by a qualified professional firm of actuaries. The obligation at the date of
statement of financial positicn is measured at the present value of the estmated future cash flows. All
contributians are charged to the statement of profit or loss for the year

Remeasurements changes which comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income.

Pravisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
ohligations and a reliable estimate of the outflow can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Taxation and levy
Current

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax
rates expectec to apply to the profit for the year, If enacted. Final taxes levied under the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 and any excess over the amount designated as provision for current tax are charged as levy in statement of
profit or loss. The charge for current tax and levy also indudes adjustments, where considered necessary, to
pravision for tax and levy made in previous years arising from assessments framec during the year for such
vears. Previously, component representing levy was included in provision for current tax and was not separately
charged in statement of profit ar loss. This change in accounting policy has been apolied retrospectively in
accordance with the provisions of IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ and
resulted in following reclassification of corresponding figures:

Reclassified fraom [Reclassified ta | RUPEES IN THOUSAND

Statement of profit or loss:
Taxation Levy 20,958

Statement of financial position:

Provision for taxation Levy payablke 20,958

Hac there been no change in the above referred accounting policy, amount of Rupees 20.958 million of levy and
levy payable would have been presented as taxation expense and provision for taxation respectively in these
financial statements. Further, this change in accounting policy has no impact on loss per share of the Company.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability methed in respect of all temporary differences arising from
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liakilites are generally
recognizec for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets to the extent that it s probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax
credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based
on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is cherged or
credited in the statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recogrized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in cther comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

46




AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED| N ANNUAL REPORT 2024

2.12

2.13

i)

Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend distrioution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company's financia
statements in the periad in which it is declared and other aporopriations are recognized in the period in which
these are approved by the Board of Directors.

Financial instruments
Classification and measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets
a) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets at amortized cost. The classification depends on the Company's
business model for managing the financial assets and the contrectual terms of the cash flows.

) Measurement

Al initial recognition, the Company measures a financigl asset at its fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acqusition of the financial asset. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considerad in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest. Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its debt instruments at amortized
cost. Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows whera those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financia
assets is included in other income using the effective Interest rate method. Financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. [nterest expense is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented
in other income / (other expenses).

Financial liabilities
Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortized cost. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognized in the statement of profitor
loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition Is also included in statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of finandal assets

The Company recognizes allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financiel assets measured at emortized
cost.

The Company measures allowance for FCLs at an amount egual to lifetime FCLs except for the bank balances
and debt securities for which credit risk {the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financia
instrument) has not increased significantly since imtial recognition. For this case ECLs are measured at 1.2-
maonths basis.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has inaeased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes Both guantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-locking
information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has ingreased significanty if it is more than past
due for a reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result fram all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-months ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default
events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of
the Instrument is less than 12 months).

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amaortized cost is deductec from the gross carrying amount af
the assets

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset s written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations
of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a porticn thereof, The Company individually makes an
assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable
expectation of recovery. The Company expeds no significant recovery from the amount written off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial assel is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- signiticant financial difficulty of the debor;

- a breach of contract such as a default;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Compeny would not cansider
otherwise; ar

- it s probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial recrganization.

iii) De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
(a) Financial assets

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset when the cortractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financal asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retzins
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. Any
interest in such de-recognized financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognized as a
separate asset or liability.

(b) Financial liabilities
The Company de-recognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial lizbility) from its statement of financial

position when the obligation specified in the contract s discharged or cancelled or expired.

iv) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the nat amount is reported in the financial statements only
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to
real ze the assets and Lo settle the liabilities simulteneously.

2.14 Barrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method while the difference between the proceeds and redemption value is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss over the period of borrowings using the effective interest methed.

2.15 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest methed, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

Other receivables are recognized at emortized cost, less any ellowance for expected credit losses.
2.16 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade anc other amounts payable are initially recognized at fair value, which is narmally the
transaction cost. These are subseguently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

2.17 Functional and presentation currency along with fareign currency transactions and translation

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (the functional currercy). The financial statements are
presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. All monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date.
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevziling at the dates of the
transactions. Net exchange differences are recognized as income or expense in the period in which these are
arised,
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2.18

i)

iii)

iv)

2.20

2,21

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue recognition

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when the customer obtains confrol of the
goods, which is generally &t the time of delivery.

Interest

Interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of
calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period
using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Other revenue
Other revenue is recognized when itis received or when the right to receive payment is estabiished.

Contract assets

The Company recognizes a contract asset for the earned consideration that is conditional if the Compeany
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due. Contract assets are treated as financial assets for impairment purposes.

Right of return assets

Right of return assets represents the right to recover invertory sold to customers and is based on an estimate of
customers who may exerdse their right to return the goods and claim a refund. Such rights are measured at the
value at which the inventory was previously carried prior to sale, less expected recovery costs and any
impairment.

Contract liabilities

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company trensfers
goods, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is received, Contract liabilities are recognized as
revenue when the Company accomplishes its performance obligetions under the contract.

Earnings / (loss) per share

The Campany presents Earnings Per Share (EPS) / Loss Per Share (LPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS / (LPS)
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributeble to ardinary shareholcers of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed when the Company has a possible asset that arises from past events and whose
axistence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertzin future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are not recognized until their realization becomes
certain.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence ar non-gccurrence of one or mare uncertzin future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent liabilities are not recognized, only discosed, unless the
possibility of a future outflow of resources is considered remote. In the event that the outflow of resources
associated with a contingent liability is assessed as probable, and If the size of the cutflow can be reliably
estimated, a provision is recognized in the finandial statements,
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3. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AMD PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL

2024 2023
{NUMBER OF SHARES)

2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

5 060 000 9060000  Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each fully

paid in cash

600 000 600000  Ordinary shares of Rupees
issued as fully paid bonus shares

S 660 000 9 660 000

4.  DIRECTORS' LOANS

10 each

90,600 90,600
6,000 6,000
96,600 96,600

These represent unsecured interest free loans obtained from the directors of the Company to meet the liquicity
requirements of the Com pany. These loans are repayable at the discreton of the Company. Out of these loans,
an amount of Rupees Nil (2023: Rupees 300 million) is subordinated to the bank borrowings.

5. PREMIUM ON ISSUE OF SHARES

This reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purpose spedfied in section 81 of the Companies Act,

2017

6. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT - NET OF DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Balance as at 01 July

Add: Increase in surplus on revaluation - net of deferred income tax

Less: Transferred to (accumulated loss) / unappropriated profit in
respect of incremental depreciation charged during the year - net of

deferred income tax

Balance as at 30 June

475,667 798,499
185,757

475,667 484,256
14,057 8,589
461,610 475,667

6.1 freeholg land, buildings thereon, plant and machinery, electric installabons / appliances, generators and
labaratary equipment of the Company were revalued by an independent valuer, Messrs Zafar Igbal and
Company on 27 June 2023 on the basis of present prevailing market prices. Previously these assets were

revalued by independent valuers on 30 June 2020, 29 June 2019, 30 June 2016, 28 June 2013, 10 April 2007,

01 July 2003 and 30 September 2001.
7. DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY

Taxable temporary differences

Accelerated tax depreciation
Right-of-use asset

Deductible temporary differences

Staff retirement gratuity

Lease liability

Provision for doubtful loans and advances

Provision for doubtful ather receivables

Provision for obsolete stores, spares and loose tools
Allowance for expected cred it losses

Unused tax losses

50

232,082 235,061
- 690
232,082 235,751
(11,400) | (11,807)
- (459)

(72) -

(187) -

(5,912) -
(199) (160)
{103,838) {110,611)
{121,608) (123,037)
110,474 112,714
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7.1 Movement in deferred income tax liability balance is as follows:

At beginning of the year
Add / (less):
- accelerated tax depreciation

right-of-use asset
- staff retirement gratuity
- pravision for doubtful loans and advances
- pravision for doubtful other receivables
- prowision for obsolete stores, spares and loose tools
- lease liability
- allowance for expected credit losses
- unused tax losses

Net moverment of temporary differences (Note 7.1.1)

7.1.1 Charged to the statement of profit or loss:

Net movement of temporary differences (Note 7.1)

- on remeasurement of staff retirement gratuity

- on surplus on revaluation of property, plant and eguipment

8. LEASE LIABILITY

Total lease liability
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities

8.1 Reconciliation of lease liability
Balance as on 01 July

Add: Interest accrued on lease liability (Mote 31)

Less: Peymenls made during the year
Balance as on 30 June
8.2 During the year the Company has settled the entire amount of rentals for

2024 and transferred the venicle to property, plant and eguipment. The
+ 1.50% (2023: 6 Month KIBOR + 1.50%) per annum

8.3 Maturity analysis of lease liability was as follows:
Upte 06 months
06 to 12 months
01 to 02 years
Mare than 02 years
Less: Future finance cost

Present value of lease liability

2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
112,714 121,601
(2,979) 45,692
(690) (173)
407 (1,219)
(72) )
(187

(5,912) _
459 70
(39) (40)
6,773 (53,217)
(2,240) (8,887)
110,474 112,714
(2,240) (8,887)
(1,926) 81
(48,181)
(4,166) (56,987)
- 1,583

365
B 1-,_2-]"8:-_
1,583 1,823
314 299
1,897 2,122
1,897 539
- 1,583

unexpired period af lease on 05 June
mplicit rate used was 6 Month KIBOR

378
- 328
- 656
- 984
- 2,346
- 763

- 1,583
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9.1

9.2

9.3

9.3.1

STAFF RETIREMENT GRATUITY

Latest actuarial valuation of the staff retirement gratuity was conducted as cn 30 June 2024 using the Projected

Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Methad.

2024

2023

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

The amount included in the statement of financial pasition is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

Balance as at 01 July
Add:
Provisian for the year (Note 9.3)

Remeasurements chargeable to other comorehensive income (Note §.4)

Less:
Retirement benefit paid
Benefits due but not yet paid

Balance as at 30 June

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit abligation as

at 30 June is given below:

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 01 July
Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Retirement berefit paid

Benefits due but not yet paid

Actuarial (gain) / loss fram changes in financial assumphians
Experience adjustments

Present value of defined benefit abligation as at 30 June
Provision for the year
Current service cost

Past service cost
Interest cost

Provision for the year has been allacated as follows:
Cost of sales (Note 26)

Distribution cost (Nate 27)
Adm nistrative expenses (Note 28)

39,312 40,714
40,714 36,508
20,514 21,210
(6,642) 280
54,586 57,998
(14,644) (17,284)
CED) |
(15,274) (17,284)
39,312 40,714
40,714 35,508
15,139 15,753
- 1,765
5,375 3,692
(14,644) (17,284)
(630)

(28) 56
(6,614) 224
39,312 40,714
15,139 15,753

1,765
5,375 3,692
20,514 21,210
18,873 19,513

65 71
1,576 1,626
20,514 21,210
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2024 2023
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
9.4 Remeasurements chargeable to other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gain) / loss from changes in financial assumptions (28) 56
Experience adjustments (6,614) 224
(6,642) 280

2024 2023

9.5 Principal actuarial assumptions used

Discount rate for interest cost in the statement of profit or loss charge (per ann

16.25% 13.25%
Discount rate for year end obligation (per annum) )

14.75% 16.25%
Expected rate of increase in salaries (per annum) N/A 15.25%
Average durabion of the benefit 5 5
Mortality rates SLIC 2001-05  SLIC 2001-05

set back 1 year set back 1 year

Withdrawal rate Age based Age hased
Retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60

9.5.1 Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics
and experience in Pakistan.

9.6 The estimated expenses to be charged to the stetement of profit or loss for the year ending on 30 June 2025 is
Rupees 17.945 million

9.7 Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions:

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have resulted in present value of defined benefit obligation as stated below:

2024 2023
Discount rate 1.00% 1.00%
Increase in assumption (Rupees in thousand) (2,020) (1,867)
Decrease in assumption (Rupees in thousand) 2,278 2,211
Future salary increase 1.00% 1.00%
Increase in assumption (Rupees in thousand) 2,278 2,211
Deaease in assumption (Rupees in thousand) (2,054) (1,899)

The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assurnption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating
the sensitivity of the defined benefit plan to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value
of the defined benefit plan calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period)
has been applied

The methods and types of assumptions used in oreparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to
previous year, except for certain changes as given in Note 9.5.
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9.8

9.9

a)

b)

i)

10.

11,

1111

Expected benefit payments for future years:

~ Within @ 1-2  2-3 3-4 ‘More than
1 year years years years 4 years

2024 10,204 8,577 7,781 7,317 723,015
2023 12,784 8,425 9,174 8,613 965,743
Risks assodiated with the scheme
Final salary risk (linked to inflation risk)
The risk that the final salary at the time of cessaticn of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the bepefit

is calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors), the benefit
amount increases as salary ncreases.

Demaographicrisks
Mortality risk

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed maortality. This effect is more
pronounced in schemes where the age and service distribution is on the higher side

Withdrawal risk

The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance of
the withdrawal ris varies with the age, service and the entit'ed benefits of the neneficiary.

2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 138,009 64,762
Accrued lizbilities and other payables 61,265 74,769
Contract liabilities - unsacured 198,737 68,095
Income tax deducted at source 2,306 749
Sales tax payaole 38,237 36,129
Workers' welfare fund 7,569 7,569

446,123 252,073

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies - secured

Running and cash finances (Note 11.1) 187,843 125,306

Others - unsecured

Related parties (Note 11.2) 307.099 459 616
194,942 585,922

These finances are obtained from banking companies under mark-up arrangements and are secured against
hypothecation of stocks and further secured against the pledge of cotton, tencel ana yarn. These form part of
total credit facility of Rupees 565 million (2023: Rupees B60 million). The rates of mark-up range from 22.96%
to 24.40% (2023: 13.70% to 23.73%) per annum on the balance outstanding.

The main faalites of letters of credit and guarantees aggregate t¢ Rupees 330 million (2023: Rupees 2598
million). The amounts utilized at 30 June 2024 were Rupees 225.601 million (2023: Rupees 58.937 million)
Securities of these facilities are the same as mentioned in Mote 11.1.

These represent nterest free loans obtained from directors of the Company toc meet the Company's working
captal requirements. These are repayable on demand.

54




AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED| N ANNUAL REPORT 2024

12.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

a) Contingencies

iy An appeal has been filed by the Company before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore on 30 July 2021
against the order of Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue for the tex year 2017 against demand of Rupees
8.966 million {2023. Rupees §.966 million} regarding non-deduction of withhelding tax from certain parties
under various clauses of section 153 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, The related provision is not made in
these financial statements in view of favorable outcome of the appeal, on advice of legal counsel.

i} An appeal has been filed by the Company before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore dated 16 April
2019 against the order of Additicnal Commissioner Inlend Revenue (Appeals) dated 14 November 2018, for
demand of Rupees 14,663 million {2023: Rupees 14.663 million) by the tax department regarding disallowence
of withholding taxes as adopted in income tax return for the tax year 2016. The related provision is not made in
these financial statements in view of favorable outcome of the appeal, on advice of legal counsel.

iii} The Company filed eppeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore on 21 March 2019 against the
order of Additonal Commissioner Inland Revenue for demand of Rupees 114,118 million (2023: Rupees 114,118
million) related to nullifying the proration of the income between FIR and NTR as adopted by the Company for
the tax year 2014, The related provision is not made in these finandal statements in view of favorable outcome of
the appeal, on advice of legal counsel.

iv) An appeal has been filed before Apoallate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore in March 2019 because Additional
Commissioner Inland Revenue amended the assessment for the tax year 2007 and created a demand of Rupees
5.766 millien (2023: Rupees 5.766 million) on the issue of proration of speafic expenses related to normal tax
regime to finel tex regime. The related provision is not made in these finandal staterments in view of favorable
outcome of the appeal, on advice of legal counsel.

v} A reference has been filed before the Lahore High Court, Lahore by Ragional Tax Office (RTQ), Faisalabad on
04 December 2019 against the order made by Appellete Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore regarding an appeal
filed by the Company dated 07 June 2017 against the demand of Rupees 22.378 million {2023: Rupees 22.378
million) by the RTO, Faisalabad regarding the disallowance of minimum tax adjustment for the tax year 2011.
The related provision is not made in these financial statements on the basis of the advice from legal counsed that
the reference filed by the Department will not be successful,

vi) On 13 August 2020, the Supreme Court of Pakistan upheld the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC)
Act, 2015 to be constitutional and intra vires. In connection with this dedsion, the Company filed a writ petition
in Lahore High Court, Lahore on 16 September 2020 ageinst the charge of GIDC at the rate of captive power
consumer instead of industnal consumer. Lahore High Court, Lahore suspended the payment of Rupees 26.344
million (2023: Rupees 26.344 million) related to this difference, subject to furnishing of post dated cheques
which have been submitted oy the Company. Keeping in view the opinion of the legal counsel of the Company,
the related provision is not made in these financial statements as there are strong grounds of favourable putcome
of the petition.

vil) An appeal was filed in Lahore High Court, Lahore on 10 August 2017 against cost of supply of Re-Gasified
Liquefied Matural Gas (RLNG) by Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited {SNGPL) amounting to Rupees 12.224
million (2023: Rupess 12.224 million). This appeal was allowed by Lahore High Court, Lanhore an 13 December
2019 by asking Ol and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) to conduct a public hearing to determine the level of
cost of supply of RLNG. Keeping in view the cpinion of the legal counsel of the Company, the related provision is
not made in these financial statements as there are strong grounds that the decision of the proposed public
hearing of OGRA will be decided in favour of the Company.

wiii) Sindh High Court, Karachi made dedsion on 04 June 2021 about the levy of Sindh Infrastructure Cess,
ageinst which the Company was contingently liable for Rupees 3 million (2023: Rupees 3 million) although
guarantees were submitted by the Company's Bank for the same amount. Against the decision, the Company
lodged a consttution petition no. 4719/2021 dated 13 August 2021 in Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP).
Thereefter, on 01 September 2021, SCP allowed the petition, suspended the judgement of Sindh High Court,
Karachi and leave to appeal was granted. However the case is not yet fixed for hearing by SCP. On advice of legal
counsel, in view of possible favourable outcome, no provision is accounted for in these financial statements.

ix) Guarantees of Rupees 104.052 million (2023: Rupees 48.237 million) are given by the banks of the Company
to SNGPL against gas connechions and Faisalabad Eledrnic Supply Company Limited (FESCO) against electricity
connection.

b) Cammitments

i) Letters of credit for capital expenditure are of Rupees 13.382 million as at 30 June 2024 (2023: Rupees Nil).

i) Letters of credit for other than capital expenditure are of Rupees 94.067 million as at 30 June 2024 (2023:

Rupees Nilj.
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2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
14. RIGHT-0QF-USE ASSET
Vehicle:
Opening bock value 2,380 2,975
Less: Depreciation charged during the year (Note 28) 436 595
1,944 2,380
Less: Book value of vehicle ransferred o property, plant and equipment (Note 13) 1,944 -
Balance as on 30 June - 2,380

14.1 The right-of-use asset has been transferred to property, plant and equipment due to full payment of lease liability as
given in Note 8.

15. LONG TERM DEFPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Security deposits 3,726 3,726
Prepayments 1,306 414
5,032 4,140
Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 22) 1,208 339
3,824 3,801
16. LONG TERM LOANS
Considered good - securec 464
Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 203 264 -
200 -

16.1 These long term loans lo employees represent interest free loans given to employess, receivable in monthly
insta iments, These lpans are secured against balance to the credit of employeas in the staff retirement gratuity. Fair
value adjustment in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 'Finandal Instruments’ arising in respect of staff loans
is not consideared material and hence not recognized

17. STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores (Note 17.1) 27,744 20,424
Spare parts 59,833 76,920
Loose tools 259 218
87,836 47,562
Less: Provision for slow moving / obsolete stores, spare parts and |ocose tools (Note 29) 20,387
67,449 97,562

17.1 These include stores in transit of Rupess 0,989 million (2023: Rupess Nil).
17.2  Stores and spare parts include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are not distinguishable.

18. STOCK IN TRADE

Raw materials (Note 18.1) 116,875 195,819
Wark-in-process 53,826 33,537
Fin'shed goods 26,812 70,991
Waste 52 §,132

197,565 313,479

1B.1 These include rew material in Transit of Rupees 57.084 million (2023: Rupees Nil).
18.2 Stock in trade of Rupees 20.570 million (2023: Rupees 50.417 million) is being carried at net realizable value

18.3 The agoregate amount of write-down of inventories to net realizable value recognized as an expense curing the year
was Rupees 0.777 million (2023: Rupees 8.153 million)
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2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
19. TRADE DEBTS

Considered good:

Unsecured 267,883 95,323
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 19.1) 687 352
767,206 94,771

19.1 Allowance for expected credit losses

Balarce as on 01 July 552 4115
Add: Recognized during the vear (Note 29) 135 137
Balance as on 30 June 687 552

19.2  Revenue from the sale of goods is recagnized at the time of delivery, while payment is generally due within 30 days
from delivery.

20. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good:

Employees - interest free:

Against salary 135 199
Against expenses:
Executive 200 200
Other employees 285 245
485 445
620 644
Advances to suppliers / service providers 1,103 1,287
Letters of credit 383 -
Current portion of long term loans {Note 16} 264
2,370 1,931
Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances (Note 29) 249
2,121 1,931
21. ADVANCE INCOME TAX AND LEVY - NET
Advance income tax - net
Advance income tax BH,858 80,353
Less: Provision for @xation - -
84,858 80,353
Levy payable / prepaid levy - net
Prepaid levy
Less: Levy payable _ (43,251)[[  (20,958)
(42,251) (20,958)
45,607 59,395
22 SHORT TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Deposits 11,100 7,700
Current portion of long term deposits and prepayments (Note 15) 1,208 339
12,308 8,039
23. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered good:
Sales tax and special excise duty refundable 60,621 55,547
Miscellaneous 644 1,784
61,265 57,331
Less: Pravision for doubtful other receivables (Note 29) 644
60,621 57,331
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24,

24.1
25.

25.1

25.2

26.

26.1

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
With banks:

on current accounts
on saving account (Note 24.1)

Cash in hand

2024

2023

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Saving account carry profit at the rate of 0.07% per annum (2023: Nil),

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Sales of yarn
Waste

Less: Sales tax

15,821 28,798
10,037 -
75,858 28,798
1,010 861
26,868 29,659
3,771,713 1,811,195
325,225 169,419
4,096,938 1,980,614
636,849 303,935

3,460,089 1,676,679

The amount of Rupees 50.254 million included in contract liabilities as at 30 June 2023 has been

recognized as revenue in 2024 (2023: Rupees 27.050 million)

Revenue is recognized at point in ime as per the terms and condibions of underlying contracts with

customers. Moreover all sales were made within Pakistan.
COST OF SALES

Raw materials consumed (Note 26.1)
Loading, unloading and weighment charges
Salaries, wages and other benefits

Staff retirement benefit (Note 9.3.1)

Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed
Packing materials consumed

Repair and maintenance

Fuel and pawer

[nsurance

Other factory averheads

Depredation on property, plant and equipment (Note 13.2)

Waork-in-process
Opening stock
Closing stock

Cost of goods manufactured

Finished goods
Opening stock
Closing stock

Raw materials consumed

Opening stock
Add: Purchased during the year

Less: Closing stock

1,986,805 1,086,263
197 175
171,964 110,168
18,873 19,513
93,746 38,028
33,092 15,531
359 717
995,493 401,960
3,436 3,206
2,319 1,174
52,699 45,617
3,358,983 1,722,352
33,537 21,076
(53,826) (33,537)]
(20,289) (12,461)
3,338,694 1,709,891
80,123 | [ 131,228
(26,864), (80,123))
53,259 51,105
3,351,953 1,760,596
199,819 428,205
1,903,861 857,877
2,103,680 1,286,082
116,875 199,819
1,986,805 1,086,263
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27, DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries and other benefits

Staff retirement benefit (Note 9.3.1)
Outward freight and handling
Commission to selling agents

28, ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits

Staff retirement benefit (Note 9.3.1)

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Travelling and conveyance

Vehides' running

Entertainment

Auditor's remuneration (Note 28.1)
Advertisement

Postage and telephone

Utilites

Printing and stationery

Repair and maintenance

Fee and subscription

Legal and professional

Miscellaneous

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Note 13.2)
Depreciation on right-of-use asset (Note 14)

28.1 Auditor's remuneration

Audit fee
Half yearly review
Other certification

29, OTHER EXPENSES

Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 19.1)
Provision for doubtful loans and advances (Note 20)
Loans and advances written off

Pravision for doubtful other receivables (Mote 23)
Provision for slow moving / obsolete stores, spare
parts and loose tools (Note 17}

30. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Profit on saving account

Income from non-finandal assets

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Gain on sale of stores, spare parts and loose tools
Credit balances written back

2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
1,113 990
65 71
25 33
4,304 195
5,507 1,289
27,045 23,727
1,576 1,626
3,602 356
2,679 1,861
4,132 3,197
8,822 8,402
1,840 1,196
1,075 975
239 137
1,446 1,275
4,917 3,180
446 411
644 883
2,162 1,193
736 648
1,727 905
3,873 3,322
436 595
67,397 53,889
300 800
125 125
50 50
1,075 575
135 137
249 -
- 91
644 -
20,387 -
21,415 228
1 -
' 376 | 3,656 |
- 128
. 4,793 129
5,069 3,913
5,070 3,913

30.1 Whole of the other income is in accardance with shariah compliant adtivities.
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2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
31. FINANCE COST

Mark-up on:
Short term borrowings 48,678 93,456
Lease liability {Note 8.1) 314 299
Bank charges and commission 1,186 1,386
Interest on workers' profit participation fund - 813
50,178 95,954

32. TAXATION
Deferred (Note 7.1.1) 4,166 56,987

32.1 Due to unused tax losses, the Campany falls under the ambit of section 113 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 and therefore minimum tax is being accounted for which is shown in Note 21 as
levy payable. The Company has unused tax losses of Rupees 358.062 million (2023: Rupees
381.418 million) representing unabsorbed depreciation of Rupees 188.269 million (2023: Rupees
200,880 million) and tax losses of Rupees 169,793 million (2023: Rupees 180.538 million). The
tax losses apart from unabsorbed depreciation will expire in 2029, Reconciliation of tax expense
and product of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate is not presented in view of
unused tax lasses of the Company. Alternative corparate tax for the year ended 30 June 2021
amounting to Rupees 28.475 million is available for carry forward upto ten years under section
113C of the Ordinance. Total minimum tax available for carry forward under section 113 of the
Ordinance as at 30 June 2024 is of Rupees 100.558 million. The Company has not recognized
deferred income tax asset in respect of minimum tax available for carry forward and alternative
corporate tax as sufficient taxable profits would not be available to utilize these in the forceable
future. The minimum tax would expire as follows:

Accounting year to which the Amount of Accounting year in which
minimum tax relates minimum tax minimum tax will expire
RUPEES IN
THOUSAND
2024 43,251 2027
2023 20,958 2026
2022 19,851 2025
2020 16,498 2025
100,558

33. LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There is no cilutive effect on the basic loss per share which is based on:

2024 2023
Loss for the year (Rupees in thousand) (110,376)  (195,735)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares {Numbers) 9 660 000 9 660 000
Loss per share {(Rupees) (11.43) (20.26)
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2024 2023
(RUPEES 1IN THOUSAND)

34, CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Loss before taxation and levy (71,291} (231,764}
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Deprediation on property, plant and equipment (Note 13) 56,572 48,539
Depre on on right-of-use assat (Note 14) 436 595
(Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (Note 30) (276} (3,656)
Provision for staff reirement gratuity (Mote 9.3) 20,514
Finance cost {Note 31 50,178
Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 25 135 137
Provision for doubtful loans and advances {Note 25 249
lLoans and advances written off 91
Provision for other receivables (Note 29) 644
Credit balances written back (Note 30} 4,793 (129)
Brovision for slow moving | pbsolete stores, spare parts and loose tools {Mote 29) 20,387
Working capital changes (Note 34 1) 133,055 225,017
215,396 156,394
34.1 Working capital changes
Decrease [ [increase) in current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 9,726 (13,894)
Stock in trade 115,914 267,030
Trade debts (172,570} (67,218)
Loans and advances {439) 2,093
Short term deposits and prepayments (4,269) (27)
Other receivables (3,934) 5,299
(55,572) 193,282
Increase in trade and other payables 188,627 31,734
_ 135055 225017
34.2 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities:
2024 1 2023 )
Short term Lease |Undaimed Short term Lease Undaimed
borrowings | liability | dividend | Total | borrowings | liability dividend Total
: p— T (RUPEES IN THOUSAND) - :
Balance as at 01 July 585,922 1,583 1,023 588,528 581,133 1,823 1,022 583,979
Borrowing (repaid) [ obtained - net {90,980) (90,980 4,789 - 4,789
Repayment of lease liability - (1,583) {1,583) - (240} - (240}
Balance as at 30 June 494,942 1,023 495965 585922 1 1,023
35. REMUNMERATIONM OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
The aggragate amount charged in the finanoal staterments for remuneration induding all benefits to the executives of the Company is as follows:
Execulives
2024 2023
(RUPEES 1IN THOUSAND)
Managerial remuneration 3,200 3,200
Allowances
House rent 1,516 1,516
Utilities 3 8
4,800 4,800
Number of persons 2 2_
35.1 Chief Executive Officer, some of the directors and executives of the Company are provided with free Company maintained venicles and entiled to

reimbursement of travelling expenses, electricity, gas and water bills

35.2 No remuneration was paid to any director and Chief Exeoutive Officer of the Company.
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36.

37.

38.

38.1

39.

(a)

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
The related parties include other related pardes and key management personnel. The Company in the normal course of business

carries out transadtions with various related parties. Detail of transactions with related parties, except for remuneration 1o key
management personnel as discussed in Note 35, is as follows

Particulars Basis of relationship Mature of transaction 2024 2023
{(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Other related parties
Directors Members of board of directors  30rrowings (repaid) / obtained - net  (152,517) 251,238

2024 2023
(NUMBER OF PERSONS)

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Number of employees as at 30 June 531 421
Average number of employees during the year 437 419
PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

2024 2023
100% plant capacity converted to 20s count hased on 3 shifts per day for 1 068 shifts
(2023: 1 095 shifts) (Kgs.) 14 314 110 14 275 00C
Actual production converted o 20s count based on 3 shifts per day for 1 068 shifts
(2023: 742 shifts) Kgs.) 7 425 387 4523 952

REASONS FOR LOW PRODUCTION

The main reason for low production is due to manufacturing of fine counts of yarn, due to which the machines run on slow speead.
Mereover, normal repair and maintenance was also the factor for low producton.

ENTITY - WIDE INFORMATION

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment. All non-current assets of the Company &t
the reporting date are located and operating in Pakistan. There was one (2023 twe) major customers of the Company representing
revenue of Rupees 549.022 million during the year (2023: Rupess 430.718 million).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Company's activides expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other price risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredicability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potental adverse effecs on the Company's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Company's finance department under policies approved by the 3oard of Directors. The
Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, other price
risk, interest rate risk, aredit risk, liquidity risk, investment of excess liquidity and use of non-derivative financial instruments.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value ar future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. Currency risk anises mainly from future commeragal Tansactons or receivables and payables that exist due to
transactions in foraign currencies. The Company has no receivable / payable balancein foreign currency as at 30 June 2024 (2023
Nil3.

(ii} Other price risk

QOther price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluduate because of changes
n market prices {other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk}, whether those changes are caused by factors

specific to the individual financial insorument or its issuer, or factors affedting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.
The Company is not exposed to other price risk
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(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to
bank balance in saving account and shaort term borrowings. Financial instruments at variable
rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. Financial instruments at fixed rate
expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial
instruments was as follows:

2024 2023
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Floating rate instruments

Financial assets
Balance in saving account 10,037 -

Financial liabilities
Lease ligbility - 1,583
Short term borrowings 187,843 126,306

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company daes not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not
affect prafit or loss of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

1f interest rates at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower wilh all other variables
held constant, loss after taxation for the year would have been Rupees 1.778 million (2023:
Rupees 1.279 million) higher / lower mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense /
income on floating rate financial instruments. This analysis is prepared assuming the amounts
of financial instruments outstanding at reporting date were outstanding for the whole year.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss
for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of financial
assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporling date was as follows:

Loans and advances 599 199
Deposits 14,826 11,426
Trade debts 267,206 94,771
Other receivables - 1,784
Bank balances 25,858 78,798

308,489 136,978
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The credit quality of finandal assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external
credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate

Rating 2024 2023
Short | ong term Agency  (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Term )
Banks
Conventional accounts
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 3,461 2,610
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ MM PACRA B0 79
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS ? 14,437
MNational Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA PACRA 1 p
Hahib Metrapolitan Bank Limited Al+ A8+ PACRA 7,101 7,139
MCB Bank Limited Al+ BAA PACRA 88 88
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ AA- PACRA 6 6
Bank Al-Habib Limited Al+ AAA PACRA e &
Sindh Bank Limitec A-14 LY VIS 10 10
10,753 24375
Shariah compliant accounts
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 1 1
AlBeraka Benk (Pakistan) Limited A-1 A4 VIS 634 634
Meezan Bank Limited A-1+4 ABA VIS 4,426 3,781
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAL VIS | 10,044 7]
15,105 4423
25858 28,798

Tne Company apgplies the IFRS § simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade debts. Management uses actuel historical credit loss experience, credit risk
characterisiics and past days due, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment to determine expecled credit loss allowance.

To manage exposure of credit risk in respect of trade debts, management performs credit reviews taking into
account the customer’s financial position, past experience and other factors, Majority of the Company's revenue is
earned from custorners where advance payment is received. Sales contracts and credit terms are approved by the
senior managemert. The management has set a maximum credit period limit for each type of customer in order to
reduce the crecit risk,

I ne Company's exposure to credit risk and allowance for expected credit losses related to trade debts is as follows;

GROSS AMOUNT EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS
2024 2023 2024 2023

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND) (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Not past due 160,776 67,178
Upto 1 maonth 37,838 26,726
1 to 6 menths 68,475 754
6 months to 1 year 117 113

More than 1 year 687 552 687 552

267,393 95,323 687 552

The management believes that all unimpaired emounts are collectab'e in full, based on historical payment behaviour
and extensive enalysis of consumer credit risk.

Cue to the Company's long standing business relabionships with these counterparties and after giving cue
consideration to their strong finanaal standing, the management coes not expect non-performance by these
counterparties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal.
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(c}) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting cbligatons asscciated with financial liabilines that
are settled by delivering cash or other financial asset. The Company's approach to manages liquidity risk (s by maintaining
sufficient cash and the availabil ity of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit fac/lities. At 30 June 2024,
the Company had Rupees 377.157 million (2023: Rupees 733.694 million) avallable funded borrowing limits from financial
institudons and Rupees 26.868 million (2023: Rupees 29.659 million] cash and bark balances. The management believes
the liguicity risk to be low. Following are the contractual maturities of financia
amounts disclosed in the table are undiscounted cash flows:

abilities, induding interest payments. The

Carrying Contractual 6 months 6-12 1-2 vears More than
amount  cash flows or less months ¥ 2 years
----------------------------- (RUPEES IN THOUSAND) ---
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2024:
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 199,274 199,274 199,274
Undamed dividend 1,023 1,023 1,023 - - -
Accrued mark-ug 10,151 10,151 10,151 - - -
Shert term borrowings 494,942 517,004 517,004 - -
705,390 727,452 727 452 - - -
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2023:
MNon-derivative financial liabilities:
Lease lability 1,583 2,346 378 328 656 ag4
Trade and other payables 139,531 139,531 139,531 - -
Undlaimed dividend 1,023 1,023 1,023
Accrued mark-up 16,365 16,365 16,365
Shart term borrowings 585,922 593,368 593,368 -
750,665 328 656 984

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of mark-up rates
effective as at 30 June. The rates of mark-up have been disclesed in Note 11 to these financial statements.

40.2 Financial instruments by categories

Financial assets as per statement of financial

Loans and acvances
Deposits

Trade debts

Other receivables

Cash and bark balances

position

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

Lease liability

Accrued mark-up
Unclaimed dividend
Short term borrowings
Irade and other payables

At amortized cost
2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

599 199
14,826 11,426
267,206 94,771
1,784

26,868 26,659
309,499 137,839
- 1,583

10,151 16,365
1,023 1,023
494,842 585,922
199,274 139,531
705,390 744,474
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40.3 Reconciliation to the line items presented in the statement of financial position is as follows:

r 2024 2023 |
! Assels as Assels as
| Financial Other tl_\an per Financial Other tl_'uan per
acsets financial sla_teme_nt assots financial sta.lemeElt
assets of financial assets of financial
| position position |
————————————————————————————— (RUPEES TN THOUSAND) === == wxmrmmmmsms e mmmme ceen
ang term deposits and prepayments 3,726 a8 3,824 3,726 75 3,801
_ong term loans 200 200 -
Loans and advances 359 1,722 , 2,121 159 1,732 1,931
Short term deposis and prepayments 11,100 1,208 12,308 7,700 339 8,039
Trade debts 267,206 - 267,206 94,771 - 94,771
Other receivables - 60,621 60,621 1,784 55,547 57,331
Cash and bank balances 26,868 - 26,868 29,659 - 29,659
306,499 53,649 373,148 137,839 57,693 195,532
' 2024 2023 ;
| Liabilities Liabilities
| e ) Other than as per . . Other than as per
| flna_r:lc_lal financial statement flna_r'_lc_lai financial | statement
| labilities | .- bilities | of financial | 12PIIHES | o ilities | of finandial
l pt_a_si_tinn | - position
----------------------------- (RUPEES IN THOUSAND) -=- === =son=ssesssamnmasoean
Lease liability 1,583 [,583
Trade and other payables 199,274 246,849 446,123 139,531 112,542 252,073
Unclaimed dividend 1,023 1,023 1,023 [,023
Accrued mark-up 10,151 - 10,151 16,365 - 16,365
Short term berrowings 494,947 494,942 585,022 585,922
705,350 246,849 952,239 744,424 112,542 556,966

40.4 Offsetting financial assets and finandal liabilities

As on reporting date, recognized financial instruments are nct subject to cffsetting as there are nc enforceable master
netting arrangements and similar agreements.

40.5 Capital risk management

The Company's abjectives when managing capital are to safequard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern in
arder to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital. In order to main@in or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividends o be paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Cansistent with others in the industry
and the requirements of the lenders, the Company monitors the capital sructure on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as borrowings divided by total capital emplaoyed. Borrowings represent short term borrowings obtained oy the
Company as referred to Note 11, Telal capital emploved includes total equity’ as shown In the statement of financial
positicn plus 'borrowings'.

2024 2023
Borrowings Rupees in thousand 494,942 LB5 622
Total equity Rupees in thousand 818,650 974,310
Taotal capital employed Rupees in thousand 1,313,592 1,510,232
Gearing ratio Percentage 37.68 38.50

The decrease in gearing ratio resulted mainly due o decresse in borrowings of the Company.
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41.

42.

O]

RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value hierarchy

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are not measured at fair value if the carrying amounts are
a reasonable zpproximation of fair value. Due to the short-term nature, carrying amounts of certain
financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair value. For the majority
of the non-current receivables, the fair values are also not significantly different to their carrying
amounts, Judgments and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments
that are recognized and measured at fair value in these financial statements. To provide an indication
about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial
instruments into following three levels, However as at the reporting date, the Company has no such
type of financial instruments which are required to be grouped into these levels. These levels are
explained as under:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: The fair velue of financial instruments that are not traced in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuaticn techniques which maximize the use of

observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are cbservable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market base (ie
unobservable inputs).

RECOGNIZED FAIR YALUE MEASUREMENTS - NON FINANCIAL ASSETS

Fair value hierarchy

The juggements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the non-financial assets that are
recognized and measured at fair value in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the

reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has dassified its non-financial
assets into the following three levels:

‘Levell| Level2 [ Level3 | Total |

--------------- RUPEES IN THOUSAND---------=-=---.
At 30 June 2024

Freehold land - 207,818 - 207,818
Buildings on freehold land 242,237 - 242,237
Plant and machinery - 677,712 - 677,712
Electric installztions / appliances - 33,894 - 33,894
Generators - 46,550 - 46,550
Laboratory equipment 8,549 8,549
Total non-financial assets - 1,216,760 - 1,216,760

At 30 June 2023

Freehold land - 207,818 - 207,818
Buildings on freehold land - 254,986 - 254,986
Plant and machinery - 651,020 - 691,020
Electric installations / appliances - 35,000 - 35,000
Generators - 49,000 - 49,000
Laboratory equipment - 8,999 - 8,999
Total non-financial assets - 1,246,823 - 1,246,823

The Company's policy is to recognize trensfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at
the end of the reporting period.

There was no transfer between level 1 and 2 for recurring feir value measurements during the year.
Further, there was no transfer in and out of level 3 measurements,
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(i} Valuation techniques used to determine level 2 fair values

The Company obtains independent valuation for its freshold land, buildings thereon, plant and machinery, electric installations
/ appliances, generators and laboratory equipment (dlassified as property, plant and equipment). The management updates
the assessment of the fair value of each property taking into account the most recent independent valuations. The
managerment determines property's value within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. The best evidence of fair value of
freehold |land is current prices in an active market for similar lands. The best evidence of fair value of buildings is to calculate
fair depreciated market value by applying an appropriate annual rate of depredation on the new construction / replacement
value of the same buildings. The best evidence of fair value of plant and machinery, electric installations / appliances,
genarators and laboratory equipment is to calculate fair depreciated market value by applying an appropriate annuz rate of
depreciation on the value of new plant and machinery, electric installations / appliances, generators and laboratory equipment
of the same spedfications.

Valuation processes

The Company engages external, independent and qualified valuers o determine the far value of the Company’s freeheld land,
buildings thereon, plant and machinery, electric installatons / appliances, generators and laboratory equipment after
significant intervals. The fair velue of the freehold land, buildings thereon, plant and machinery, electric installations [/
appliances, generators and laborztory equipment has been determined by Messrs Zafar lghal and Company as at 27 June
2023

Changes in farr values are analyzed al each reporting date during discussien between the management of the Company and
the valuer. As part of this discussion the team presents a report that explains the reason for the fair value movements.

43. DISCLOSURES BY COMPANY LISTED ON [SLAMIC INDEX

[Description [ Note [ 2024 | 2023 |
(RUPESS IN THOUSAND)

Revenue earned from shariah compliant business 25 3,460,089 1,676,679
Shariah compliant bank deposits and bank balances

Aank balances 40.1 (b} 15,105 4,423
Profit earned on shariah compliant bank account 30 1

Profits earned or interest paid on any conventional loan /[ advance

Mark-up on short term borrowings 31 48,678 93,456
Mark -up on lezse liability 31 314 296

Loans [ advances obtained as per Islamic mode

Contract liabilities 10 198,737 68,095
Short term borrowings 11 307,099 459,616

There 15 no dividend or profit earmed on any investment, no exchange gain earned and no mark-up paid on 1slamic mode of
financing. The relationship with shariah comphant banks 1s related W bank accounts as given in Note 20.1(b).

44, DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorized for issue on September 25, 2024 by the Board of Directors of the Company.
45. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Comparative figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison. However, no significant re-
arrangereants have been made, except for as given in Note 2,11 to these financial statements.

46. GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees, unless otherwise stated.

)

£y _/"
AIZAD AMER KHAWZA JA AMER KHURSHID Muhamimad Shaqib Ehsan
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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FORM 20

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

(Section 227(2)(f))

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

1.1 Name of the Company | AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED [

2.1. Pattern of haolding of the shares held by the sharehalders as at | 30-06-2024 |

-—-Shareholdings--—-

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
559 1 100 16,991
237 101 500 54,645

35 501 1,000 30,907
66 1,001 5,000 168,978
11 5,001 10,000 85,266
7 10,001 15,000 90,867
3 15,001 20,000 51,609
3 20,001 25,000 71,520
1 30,001 35,000 30,500
1 35,001 40,000 36,000
3 40,001 45,000 128,344
1 55,001 60,000 58,500
1 75,001 80,000 78,225
1 85,001 90,000 89,000
1 95,001 100,000 100,000
1 235,001 240,000 238,000
1 260,001 265,000 264,125
1 430,001 435,000 431,446
1 740,001 745,000 742,697
1 885,001 890,000 890,000
1 1,180,001 1,185,000 1,184,193
1 1,475,001 1,480,000 1,475,611
1 1,640,001 1,645,000 1,640,170
1 1,700,001 1,705,000 1,702,404
939 9,660,000
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2.3 Categories of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 8,018,834 83.0107
and their spouse and minor children

2.3.2 Associated Companies, 0 0.0000
undertakings and related
parties. (Parent Company)

2.3.3 NITand ICP 448,846 4.6464
2.3.4 Banks Dewlopment 559 0.0058

Financial Institutions, Non
Banking Financial Institutions.

2.3.5 Insurance Companies 0 0.0000
2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutual 6,600 0.0683
Funds
2.3.7 Shareholders holding 10% 7,126,834 73.7767
or more

2.3.8 General Public
a. Local 1,089,892 11.2825
b. Foreign 0 0.0000

2.3.9 Others (to be specified)

- Joint Stock Companies 41,733 0.4320
- Investment Companies 200 0.0021
- Pension Funds 40,587 0.4202
- Others 12,749 0.1320
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Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)

As on June 30, 2024

No. of Shares

Sr. Nao. Name Percentage
Held
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail): - -
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Deftail)
I CDC - TRUSTEE GOLDEN ARROW SELECTED STOCK FUND (CDC) 6,500 0.0673
Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):
| MR AIZAD AMER 1,740,170 18.0142
2 MRS, NAZIMA AMER 1,626,890 19.947]
3 MR. ANNS AMER 1475611 15.2755
4 MISS YUSRA AMER 890,000 02133
5 KHAWAIJA AMER KHURSHED 1,984 163 20,5400
6 SYED KHALID ALI 1,000 0.0104
7 MR MUHAMMA D UM AR MUNEER 1,000 0.0104
Executives: - -
Public Sector Companies & Carporations: - -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 41,246 0.4270

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or mare voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

S. No.

lud g —

Name

MRS, NAZIMA AMER
KHAWAJA AMER KHURSHID
MR AIZAD AMER

MR, ANNS AMER

MISS YUSRA AMER

Holding

1,926,890
1,984 163
1,740,170
1,475,611

890,000

% AGE
19.9471
20,5400
18.0142
15.2755
92133

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their
spouses and minor children shall also be disclosed:

S. No.

Name
KHAWAJA AMER KHURSHID (CDC)

Sale

Purchase
59,759
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GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT UNDER CIRCULAR NO. 10 DATED 17 APRIL 2024

Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended 30 June 2024:

i.  Mean gender pay gap
i.  Median gender pay gap
iil.  Any other data

Aizad Amer
Chief Executive Officer

26 September 2024

Nil
Nil
Nil
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FORM OF PROXY

I/We of
being member(s) of
AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED holding ordinary shares as per Registered Folio
No./CDC A/c No. (for members who have shares in CDS)
hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss of (full
address) or failing him/her
Mr./Mrs./Miss of (full
address) (being

member of the Company) as my/our Proxy to attend, act and vote for me/us and on my/our
behalf at the 43™ Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on QOctober 28, 2024
at 11:30 a.m. at its Registered Office 35 K.M. Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad and/or any
adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand seal this day of 2024
Signed by in the
presence of

Sgnamures on
Rs.5/-
Revenue Stamps

(Signature must agree with the specimen
signatures registered with the Company)
Notes:

1. This proxy form duly completed and signed, must be received at the Office of the Share
Registrar M/S Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 01-K Commercial, Model Town,
Lahare not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

2. No person shall act as proxy unless he/she himselffherself is a member of the
Company, except that a Corporation may appoint a person who is not a member.

3. If a member appoinis more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are
deposited by a member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be
rendered invalid.

4. Any individual Beneficial Owner of the Central Depository Company, entitled to vote at
this meeting must bring his / her Naticnal |dentity Card with him/her to prove his/her
identity, and in case of proxy, must enclose an attested copy of his / her National
Identity Card. Representatives of Carporate members should bring the usual
documents required for such purpose.

75




AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED| ¥ ANNUAL REPORT 2024

R g
AL P ent L St ) S i il )= S DUSUSSSSS AIR
______________ o NS IR e U P e A IS
I T L g I 109 S fem AN

L 3 1130085 2024 4712804 & A FAL R e A AT
-t 'xbﬂﬁ‘f;{gl,’#/@aw,lgf};ﬁ; eI U
,2024 -2
__________________ 5511 s
et
------------------ Ay
- b5 2
E’z;.,us -— - et
O e y
4 Aol
__________________ 5
(Un bl i LU L)
———————————— Ao its$ens

LR AL TN AT Tl P @B A s Sl e m L s M biShy -1
- u’ﬁ;g}z';,w"{ 2l PO S S s Lf‘;; y Ej/"{—é/;f_"}d»‘ blos ) T 6 Y2 -2
gjq _5{?‘:.«{{ y F’r‘: b o/ A I;;l;; If;:":f_. 12 .’.{!;5‘.' s '.::#7;'. e {_i LA Sl ';J:ju': b -3
e PG
G170y /8 Lrin 3 5SS
b A i e
Uy s WS STt Pl G L{!I/;I)J{l‘_.fﬁt_f;{ (i)
-fgn&f_ﬁai,ﬂipﬁjf;ug%}&fﬁ&,x: Wl Sogms i)
WIS NN RALBTE S g CVU I (YR (1
s ng:’,; ( -;_,':’!Z“.'j & (3 l,ié )ﬁ);«:": e ) }J e ;_.51 (N Lot ,:’-L}K)/L'.f FIAAT Ly ..:.«J:“k,rg,?;'h.'.-_; ny 1 (iv)
_zuﬁLILBiLE;‘:WL

76




AN TEXTILE MILLS L
35 K.M, Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad.



